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The following provides a summary of the questions asked at the sessions, and the answers provided.  

Are there opportunities for investors who are less interested in financial returns?  
Yes – different parties have different objectives.  If philanthropic funders are primarily interested in social 
returns, rather than in financial returns, there can certainly be a role in the funding structure. OSII is very 
open to innovative funding structures.  The optional template financial models provides an option to 
include both philanthropic and social enterprise revenue.  
  
Would a localised economic development RFP incorporate different priority issues?  
Yes.  When looking at any community, there would be priority issues that community is experiencing that 
cut across a range of policy areas. 
  
How does OSII propose including client engagement on the rate card development?  
We will be conducting market consultation in developing rate card and welcome the involvement of service 
users. 
 
Who are you going to work with to determine the segment (cohort)? What level of data can you provide 
(regional location, age group, chronic use of services, cohort, outcomes, financial model) to the market? 
OSII is keen to afford flexibility to the market in determining what an appropriate cohort is. 
Based on FACS input and data, potential priority cohorts will be identified in the RFP that proponents may 
want to focus on.  
In terms of developing a rate card, we can't provide tailored data that suits every potential cohort.  
Therefore, we will use average figures to inform rate card development. During the Joint Development 
Phase, we that will get into more detail and have specific data for the defined cohort.  
  
The issue with youth homelessness is multidimensional, which could include housing, mental health, 
employment, training and justice components. If someone is going to put a proposal that is holistic, can 
OSII coordinate that because it will require different departments and different budgets?  
We recognise the complexity of factors contributing to homelessness. Whilst FACS would be the lead 
agency responsible for a SII in homelessness, FACS and OSII would work with other agencies to recognise 
this complexity.   
  
When you put the RFP out, there will be a list of outcomes and prices to them. What if the intervention a 
service provider proposes have outcomes that are not included in the rate card? This would add a level of 
unknowns to the model. Is there any chance for other metrics to be included in rate card? 
OSII and FACS will conduct consultation in the next few weeks to seek feedback on proposed metrics and 
understand what might be missing in the rate card. OSII and FACS will then consider all feedback and refine 
accordingly. Ideally, consultation will identify if/where there are important metrics missing. 



 
 

 
 

 
In the UK, in applying the rate card, were rates applied against baseline? In homelessness, finding that 
baseline is not practical. What approach is OSII taking?  
The UK rates were informed by historical baseline analysis.  OSII is analysing large amounts of data to 
inform rate card design and will share seek further feedback through market engagement and surveys. 
  
You have painted two options in relation to deadweight - historical baseline or control group.  
The way rates are informed, you take information of what would have happened anyway and you build 
that into the rate. There is always going to be an assumption of deadweight. Do you pay on an individual 
basis or a cohort basis? 
UK rate cards have been based on individual outcomes.  We are exploring both, noting using individual 
basis is a more simplified approach.  
 
In relation to the unsolicited application processes, are you going to open a window? How does the 
process work?  
OSII notes that this proposal is still under development so any answer may evolve.   
If a proposal aligns with priority issue area, then the RFP route is appropriate. If a proposal relates to a 
different idea, then the unsolicited application process could be used because there would not be any RFP 
route or information to support this.  
Timing remains undecided. In the first instance, we are likely to do something time bound because the 
learning from a pilot will help inform an ongoing process.  
  
Is there an openness to other capital investment?   
Yes.  To date, most investments have funded investor repayment through outcome payments. However, if 
a funding structure can be developed to incorporate rental payments we are very open to that, particularly 
where it supports scale.  
 
There has been no mention of Commonwealth government. Why?  Has the time come to partner with 
the Commonwealth?  
OSII would be very interested to partner with the Commonwealth and have ongoing conversation as part of 
the SII Interjurisdictional Network. There is also an openness to better data sharing to support SII 
development. 
 
Most institutions have funds and say they can’t find deal flow. In the UK, through the innovation fund, 
there were uplift in numbers of SIBs launched, but it seems here we have a way to go to stimulate the 
market. In the early stages, should Government take on a higher level of risk, to stimulate growth in the 
institutional market?  
We are very open to considering options that will unlock institutional funding opportunities, including term 
of risks sharing. Of note though, NSW Governments already bears more risk in investments that most UK 
social investments.  
 
Will FACS be the only government agency involved with the RFP, or will other agencies such as NSW 
Health be involved given health will be a key beneficiary of a significant portion of the benefits related to 
homelessness? 
OSII is working with different agencies, including Health, on the development of the Homelessness 

Outcomes Rate Card in line with the range of outcomes that can be achieved. For example, savings to 

Health will be considered in the economic analysis to establish rates.   



 
 

 
 

Will the rate card approach allow for payments from achieving some of the outcomes but not others?  

Payments for each metric is proposed to be independent (e.g. someone might trigger an employment 

metric, but not have triggered a sustained housing metric).  OSII could consider options of making 

secondary metrics, such as re-offending and employment targets, only payable once the primary metric, 

such as the achievement of stable housing, is achieved. Importantly, these questions will help shape the 

development of the Rate Card and OSII will solicit this information from the sector to ensure all information 

and feedback is incorporated into the design.   

The achievement of housing is a long-term process however the investment will have a relatively short 

timeframe. Is the aim for the design of the service to be able to be scaled in the future?  

There are challenges in reaching scale however there is a desire to see successful interventions scaled to 

have more impact.  These details, as well as the size of the bond/investment, will be determined in the JDP 

process.  

Have the LHD’s been included in the co-design process of the RFP? 

Yes, FACS districts have been involved and will continue to be involved especially for place-based proposals.  

What baseline is being used – historical or live counterfactual? And is access to linked datasets for 

proponents being contemplated?  

Analysis of historical baselines is being used to inform the calculation of rates for the rate card. Longer term 

evaluation of the program, such as in 4-5 years, could be completed with a linked dataset created to 

capture a live counterfactual. Regarding access to data, there are challenges such as privacy considerations 

which has meant that data is not readily available, and will be challenging to share with proponents.  These 

issues will continue to be worked through by Government. 

How is OSII working to simplify cohort complexity? 

The priority cohort/s will be aligned to FACS policy and identified as part of the RFP documentation.  

Can detail be provided around the size of the bond? 

This is unavailable at this stage. Guidance will be provided closer to the release of any upcoming RFP.  

Will benefits accrued to the federal government be measured?  

As it is a State government initiative, the focus will generally be on cost savings / benefits accruing to NSW. 

However, OSII is conscious of the wider benefits that can be attained, including to the Commonwealth. 

Accessing data from the Commonwealth is improving and will allow for a holistic picture of total savings. 

This is being aided by the strong agenda of sharing data at the SII Interjurisdictional Network which NSW 

chairs. There is also strong alignment with the Commonwealth and State priorities for SII which was evident 

from the announcement of the recent federal budget. This includes $6.7m for capacity building on 

outcomes measurement as well as $1.6m over three years to support a new SII model. OSII is keen to 

continue exploring partnership opportunities with the Commonwealth.  

Would a broader state-wide approach be considered that includes all blockages to people accessing 

accommodation?  

Yes, we are open to a range of ideas from the market.  There are a range of factors that influence 

homelessness prevalence. Any RFP in the homelessness space will consider this range of factors.     

 



 
 

 
 

Is there scope to consider the housing conditions of different locations as the efficiency of a transaction 

in one area will be different compared to other regions? How will it be accounted for that primary 

indicators, such as having stable housing, would be harder to attain in some areas, such as regional areas, 

than others? 

OSII is keen to take forward this consideration in the rates/metrics conversation. It is important to note that 

one of the benefits of SII is that there is no specificity in what the programs or services need to look like, 

therefore there is definitely scope for proposals across different regional areas.  Differences in costing / 

availability of housing will be considered further in proposal specific analysis to be undertaken as part of 

the Joint Development Phase.    

Is there preference for the SII to be different to the Foyer 51 social benefit bond?  

It is important to learn from what works so if there is potential for an evolution of the bond that would be 

interesting, but the preference is to focus on new learning.  

How will external shocks affect the investment instrument? Using a historical baseline does not account 

for risks at a macro level that could impact the level of homelessness.  

Exogenous shocks will be handled through a contractual arrangement (e.g. review clauses), which will set 

out how external factors and its impact on outcomes can be managed in an investment.  

Could government land and assets be included as part of the bond? 

There will not necessarily be land attached, however OSII/FACS is open to all different models and ways of 

structuring the investment.   

Will the outcomes rate card be reviewed once better evidence becomes apparent? For example, will 

there be scope to include more or different metrics and what if there is a change in the definition of 

homelessness?   

At this stage, this is not known but OSII will garner these thoughts in the conversation on the rate card 

going forward. As previously emphasised it is important to receive as much feedback and thoughts on the 

rate card as possible to create a strong starting point should the RFP on homelessness be released. 

Regarding the definition change (e.g. ABS definitions) this would be managed by having terms contractually 

defined independent of the source.  

 


